
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTY-SECOND SESSION

Official Records*

SIXTH COMMITTEE
55th meeting

held on
Monday, 23 November 1987

at 3 p.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 55th MEETING

Chairman: Mr. AZZAROUK (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 134: REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE ON '.i:HE DRAFTING OF AN
INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION AGAINST THE RECRUITMENT, USE, FINANCING AND TRAINING OF
MERCENARIES (continu~d)

AGENDA ITEM 137: REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE CHARTER OF THE UNITED
NATIONS AND ON THE STRENGTHENING OF THE ROLE OF THE ORGANIZATION (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 129: PEACEFUL SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES BETWEEN STATES (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 138: DEVELOPMENT AND STRENGTHENING OF GOOl>-NEIGHBOURLINESS BETfNEEN
STATES (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 132: REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS COMMISSION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE
LAW ON THE WORK OF ITS TWENTIETH SESSION (continued)

-Thf" rn'NJ 1'. 'llt"JC(1 '1''' n-"fT't":'l1(J-n ("OfTlXt:\m, oJ'l,(x:lJ h. ""tU unJ.;r the' ~i!f\.f,turl,~ n: .J ,,',..-'W·'C:- ,\t rh..: kll..

&3110n t.~('\~erTh.""d W/{!U!'f ,\f11' K'f"t~ \1 thr du.le OJ pWN10Jtlc.'tff m the Chll:i (If the Oii'~lll R"·l.\'rJ~ t.Jl1m~ ~.. (th.1fl.

hX'Ift'! rx'1·"'~ ~ \'n:I\~ :'i.alm.n, PIU1.1. anJ 1n.,1.l!l",r.:lft."d In j ,,'l"r' ,·1 [l'R;- f'l:"o:~tfJ

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.6/42/SR.'55
27 November 1987

87-57296 0994S (E)
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

/ ....



A/C.6/42/SR.55
English
Patje 2

The meeting was called to order at 3.20 p.m.

AGENM ITEM 134: REPORT OF THE AD HOC COMMITTEE ON THE DRAFTING OF AN
INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION AGAINST THE RECRUITMENT, USE, FINANCING AND TRAINING OF
MERCENARIES (£2!!!'.~)

Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8

1. The CHAIRYAN drew attention to document A/C.6/42/L.14, containing the
statement of programme budget implications of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8.

~. ~S~ (Nigeria), introducing the draft resolution on behalf of its
.'lponsors, sald th.Jt Turkey had joined them. Althouqh the Ad Hoc Committee on the
Drafting of an International Convention auainst the Recruitment, Use, Financinq and
Training of Mercenaries had made some prcqress at its most recent session, it had
yet l:o~ccomplish the task entrusted tr:- it by the General Assembly, he,..,::e the need
for the draft L~solution before the Sixth Committee. Except for mino. changes, the
preambular paragt~phs of the draft were the same as those of the corresponding
resolutions 0f previous years. The Ad Hoc Committee's seventh session, which was
referred to in paragraph 5 of the draft, would OP a three-week session, as
indicated 1n document A/C.6/42/L.l4, paragraph 3, and the dates of the session
would be set by the Secr~tariat. The sponsors ef the draft hoped that the Sixth
Committee would be able to adopt it without a vote.

3. Mr. MIRZAIE-YENGEJEH (Islamic Republic of Iran), explaininq his delegations's
position on draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8, said that there was a~ urqent need to
draw up, at the earliest possible date, an international convention against the
recruitment, use, financing and training of mercenaries. His deleqdtion endorsed
the fourth and sixth preambular paragraphs of the draft resolution, in particular.
It had ~oted with satisfaction the progress ~e by the Ad Hoc Committed at its
most recent session, and was in favour of the renewal of the Ad Hoc Committee's
mannate. However, it had misgivings about the attitudes of certain countries,
which had themselves been involved in the use of mercenaries a~ an instrument of
their foreign policy. The States in question, such as the aggressor against the
Islamic Republic of Iran, sometimes took positions inconsistent with the will of
the overwhelming majority of countries. Paradoxically, they sometimes even
co-sponsored draft resolutions against mercenariam. It was quite clear that the
aim was not only to deceive the international c"mmunity, but also to cover up t-heir
record o~ recruiting, using and financing mercenaries.

4. Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8 was adopted.

5. Mr. BERNHARD (Denmark), explaining the position of the States melnhers or the
European Community, said that their statement at the Sixth Committee's 13th me~t1ng

had left no doubt as to thpir strong condemnation of tne activities of mercenaries
and their will to continue to take an active part in the Ad Hoc Committee's work
towards a universally acceptable convention. However, they were concerned at
developments in other forums. The overlappinq between the activities of the

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.55
English
Page 3

(Mr. Bernhard, Denmark)

Economic and Social Council and the Third Committee, o~ rhe one hand, and the
activities of the Sixth COll'lllittee, on the other hand, ~ unfortunate in itself and
obviously also cr~ateu a danger of conflict between the 4ctivities in question. In
addition, the Twelve wished to reaffirm the view they had expressed on previous
occasions concerning the fourth pr-.ambUlar paragraph of ~he draft resolution, which
stated that the actiVities of mercenaries were contrary to fundamental principles
of international law. Of course, such activities might be contrary to
inter~ational law when, for example, they involved interference in the inttirnal
affairs of a State at t~e insti~ation or with the assistance of another State. In
other cases, however, while th-. crimes of individuals acting on their own behalf
were clearly reprehensible, the actl.vities in question could not be imputed to
States or regarded as violatio~s of international law.

6. The Twelve maint~ined a positive attitude towards the Ad H~ Committee's work
and were therefore pleased that the draft resolution had been adopted without a
vote. They hoped that it would b~ possible to continue that work in a constructive
way in the forum that, in their view, was the proper one.

7. Mr. BRING (Sweden), speaking on behalf of the delegations of Denmark, Finland,
Iceland ana Norway, a~ well as his own delegation, said that they had joined in the
consensus on draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8 because they s~rongly condemned the
actiVities of mercenaries and supported the Ad Hoc Committee's work.

B. The Nordic States fully supported the views just expressed on behalf of the
European Community.

9. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (United States of America) said that his delegation had joined
in the consensus on the draft just adopted, despite serious reservations concerning
the treatment of the topic in the Third COll'lllittee. The United States had voted
against draft r~solution A/C.3/'-2/L.14 because, inter alia, it duplicated Sixth
Committee work on the subject. ~t only were several of that draft resolution's
preambular paragra~hs identical to or substantially the same as those of the draft
resolution just adopted, but one of its operativ~ par~graphs urged all States to
take the necessary measures under their respective domestic laws to prohibit the
recrUitment, financing, training and transit of mercenaries on their territory.
That kind of overlap was unacceptable, and it was to be hoped that the Si~th

Committee would redres8 that situation at the.next session ot the General Assembly.

10. As in the case of resolution 41/80, his deleqation had difficulty with the
fourth p:eambular paragraph of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8, which stated that the
activities of mercenaries were contrary to fundamental principles of international
law, ~nd then listed principles that applied not to the actions of individuals such
as mercenaries, but to those of States.

11. Mr. HAYASHI (Japan) said that his delegation had supported the adoption
witt~ut a vote of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.8 because it endorsed the content of
the text in qeneral. However, it wished to reiterate its reservations regarding
the statement in the fourth preambular paraqraph that the activities of mercenaries

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR,SS
English
Page 4

(Mr. Hayashi, Japan)

were contrary to fundamental principles of internatiunal law. Such activities,
being acts committed by individuals, did ~ot necessa:ily const1,tute violations of
international law. Furthermore, Japan wished to place on record its serious
concern regarding draft resolution A/C.3/42/L.l4, and the action that the Third
Committee had taken on it despite strong opposition from a number of delegations.
It wa. regrettable that the Third Committee had failed to take account of the
wishes and the work of the Sixth Committee and the Ad Hoc Committee. Such
developments could only have a negative i.·~act. on progress in the Ad Hoc Committee,
which had been engaged in a serious endeavour to draft an international
convention.

12. Mr. AL-ADHAMI (Iraq) said that the delegation of the Iranian regime, which had
been lying as usual, had been caught out by its own lies. The relationship between
Iraq and that regime and the acts of aggression constantly perpetrated by the
latter were reminiscent of the Middle Ages or perhaps even prehistory. Th~ Iranian
regime should act in accordance with the Charter and Security Council
resolution 598 (1987).

13. ~r. MIRZAIE-YENGEJEH (Islamic RepubJic of Iran) said that the Sixth Committee
was not the proper forum for discussing the issues raised by the representative of
Iraq.

AGENDA ITEM 137: REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE CHARTER OF THE UNI~~D

NATIONS AND ON THE STRENGTHENING OF THE ROLE OF THE ORGANIZATION (continued)

Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.lO

14. The CHAIRMAN drew attention to document A/C.6/42/L.16, containing the
statement of programme budget implications of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.10.

15. Mr. MADI (Egypt), introducing the draft resolution, said that Argentina and
Malaysia had joined the sponsors. They all hoped that the text could be adopted
without a vote.

16. Draft resolution A!C.6/42/L.10 waR adopted.

AGENDA ITEM 129: PEACEFUL SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES BETWEEN STATES (continued)

Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.~

17. Mr. VOICU (Romania), introducing draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5, of which
Malaysia, Malta and Paraguay had also become sponsors, said that the preamble
reproduced the corresponding provisions of General Assembly resolution 41/74. He
drew particular attention to the fourth preambular paragraph and the last
preambular paragraph, which underlined that efforts for strp.ngthening the process
of peacefUl settlement of disputes should be continued. The references in the
e~rlier resolution to the resort to a commission of good offices, mediation or

/ ...



A/C. 6/C2/SR. 55
English
Pagf' 5

(~r. \bicu, Romania)

conciliation had been eliminated because delegations felt that appropriate
provisions concerning good offices were already included in the mandat9 o~ the
Special Committee on the Charter of the United Nations and on the Strengthening of
the Role of the Organization. Paragraph 4, which r.qu~sted the ~e~retary-General

to submit a report contbining the replies of Member States and of other bodies on
the implementation of the Manila Declaration, was entir~iy new. Paragraph 5 had
been the result of extensive consultations among delegations. He drew attention to
the fact that the Manila Declaration hau been adopted ·,.ithout a vote,' and expressed
the hope that all delegations which had committed th~~selves to it in 1982 were
still committed to it and would therefore adopt the draft resolution without a vote.

18. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (United States of America) said that, although all States were
obligated by Ar 'cle 2, paragraph 3, of the Charter to settle disputes 'y peaceful
means, that did not mean that the Article needed to be ~ept on the agenda every
year. No useful purpose ~as therefore served by paragraph 5 of the draft
resolution. Moreover, with regard to paragraph 4, althOugh all delegations still
supported the Manila Declaration, that did not mean that a Secretariat study of it
was needed only five years dfter Ha adoption. It was improper to speak of
implementation in connection with a recommendation. Furthermore, the United Sttites
was unable to accept the 1d~a that it was an efficient use of finite resources to
burden the Codification Division by asking States what they thought of the Manila
Declaration. His delegation would therefore vote against paragraphs 4 an~ 5, and
abstain in the vote on the draft resolution as a whole.

19. Mr. KATEKA (United RepUblic of Tanzania) said that he agree~ with the United
States that it was not necessary to go on ur1ing Member States each year to
implement the Manila Declaration. However, in the interest of political
solidarity, his delegation would vote in favour of the draft resolution.

20. Aft~r a procedural discussion (in which Mr. VOICU (Romani&;. M~. ROSENSTOCK
(United States of America) and Mr. AL-KHASAWNEH (Jordan) took partl, the CHAIRMAN
said that separate roli-call votes on paragraphs 4 and 5 and a roll-cal' vote on
the draft resolution as a whole had been reauested.

21. A vote was taken by roll call on paragraph 4 of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5.

In favour: Albania, Algeria, Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Benin, Bhutan,
Bolivia, Botswana, Bulgaria,' Burkina Faso, Burma, Byelorussian
SOViet Socialist Republic, Cameroon, Cape Verde, Central Af~ican

~epublic, Chad, Chile, China, Congo, Costa Rica, Cote d'Ivoire,
Cuba, Cyprus, Czechoslovakia, Democrati(~ Yemel", Ecuador, Egypt,
Ethiopia, German Democratic RepUblic, Grlana, Greece .. Guatemala,
Guinea, Guyana, India, Indonesia, Iran (Islamic Republic of) ,
Iraq, Jordan, Kenya, Kuwait, Lao People's Democratic Republic,
Les0tho, Liberia, Libyan Arab Jamahiriya, M, dagascar, Malaysia,
Maldives, Mali, Mauritania, Mexico, Mongolia, Morocco,
Mozambique, Nicaragua, Niger, Nigeria, Oman, Pakistal., Panama,
Paraguay, Philippines, Poland, Qatar, Romania, Rwanda, Saudi

/ ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 55
English
Page 6

Arabia, Senegal, Singapore, Somalia, Sudan, Suriname, Swaziland,
Syrian Arah Republic, Tt iland, Togo, Trinidad and Tobago,
Tunisia, UlJdnda, Ukrainia., Soviet SocialiRt Republic, Union of
Soviet Socialist Republics, United Arab Emirates, United Republic
of Tanzania, Uruguay, Vlet Nam, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Zaire, Zambia,
Zimbabwe.

Against, Belgium, France, Germany, Federal Republic of, Italy, Japan,
Netherlands, United Kingdom ot Great Britain and Northern
IreL'Id, United States ot America.

Abstain1~' Australia, Austria, Brazil, Canada, DenmArk, Finland, Hungary,
Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Lebanon, Ne~ Zealand, Norway, Peru,
Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Turkey, venezuela.

22. Paragraph 4 of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5 was adopted by 91 votes to ~,

wi th 19 abstentions.

23. A vote was taken by roll call on paragraph 5 of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5.

In favour: Albania, Algeria, Angola, Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh,
Barbados, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Botsw~na, Bulgaria, Burkina
Faso, Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cameroon,
Cape verde, Central African Re~ublic, Chad, Chile, China, Congo,
Costa Rica, Cote d'Ivoire, CUba, Cyprus, Czechoslovakia,
Democratic Yemen, Ecuador, Egypt, Ethiopia, German Democrat.ic
Republic, Gh~na, Greece, Guat~mala, Guinea, Guyana, Hungary,
India, Indonesia, Iran (Islamic Republic of), Iraq, Jordan,
Kenya, Kuwait, r~o Peoplp's Democratic Republic, Lesotho,
Liberia, Libyan Arab Jamahiriya, Madagascar, Malaysia, Maldives,
Mali, Mauritania, Mexico,.Mongolia, Morocco, Mozambique,
Nicaragua, Niger, Nigeria, Oman, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay,
Peru, Philippines, Poland, Qatar, Romania, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia,
Senegal, Singapore, Somalia, ~udan, Suriname, Swaziland. Syrian
Arab Republic, Thailand, T~o, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia,
Uqanda, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist RepUblic, Union of Soviet
Socialist RepUblics, United Arab Emirates, United Republic of
Tanzania, Uruguay, Venezuela, V1.et Nam, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Zaire,
Zambia, Zimbabwe.

Against: Australia, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Iceland,
Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Northern Irelald, U~~ted States of America.

Abstaining: Austria, Belgium, B.a~il, Germany, Federal RepUblic of, Ireland,
Israel, Italy, Japan, Lebanon, New Zealand, Turkey.

24. Paragraph 5 of draft resoluti~n A/C.6/42iL.5 was adopted by 96 votes to 13,
with 11 abstentions.

I ...



· '/C.6/42/SR. 55
English
Page 7

25. A vote was taken by roll call on draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5 as a whole.

In favour. Albania, Algeria, Angola, Argentina, Austria, Bahrain,
BangladeEh, Barbados, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Botswana, Brazil,
Bulgaria, Burkin~ raso, Burma, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist
Republic, Cameroon, Cape Verd., centrAl African Republic, Chad,
Chile, ChinA, Congo, Costa Rica, Cate d'Ivoire, Cuba, Cyprus,
Czecha~lovakia, Democratic Yemen, Djibouti, Ecuador, Egypt,
Ethiopia, German Democratic Republic, Ghana, Greece, Guatemala,
Guinea, Guvana, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Iran (Islamic Re~~hlic

of), Iraq, Ireland, Jordan, Kenya, Kuwait, Lao People'S
Democratic Republic, Lesotho, Liberia, Libya.i. Arab Jamahiriya,
Madagascar, Malaysia, Maldives, Mali, Mauritania, Mexico,
Mongolia, Morocco, Mozambique, Nepal, New Zealand, Nicaragua,
Niger, Nigeria, Oman, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay, Peru,
Philippines, poland, Qatar, Romania, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia,
Senegal, Singapore, Somalia, Suriname, Swaziland, Syrian Arab
Republic, Thailand, To9o, Trinid~d and Tobago, Tunisia, Uganda,
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist
R~publics, United Arab Emirates, United Republic of Tanzania,
Uruguay, Venezuela, Viet ~am, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Zaire, Zambia,
Zimbabwe.

AgAi~. None.

Abstaining. Australia, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany,
Fedoral Republic of, Iceland, Israel, Italy, Japan, Lebano~,

Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Turkey, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of
America.

26. Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.5 as a whole was adopted by 101 votes to none,
with 20 abstentions.

27. Mr. VELASCO (Peru), speaking in explanation of vote, said that hiR delegatioh
wished to reaffirm the comments it had made when the Manila Declaration had been
adopted, more particularly with regard to its understanding of certain provisions
in that Declaration.

28. Mr. BERNAL (Mexico) said that his delegation had voted in favour of
paragraph .. of the 1raft resolution, for the reasons stated by the Tanza~ian

representative and subject to the same reservations.

29. Mr. HAYASHI (Japan) said that his delegation had abstained in the vote on the
draft resolution as a whole. In as much as the Manila Declaration waa not a legal
document, the request made in paragraph 4 was neither useful nor appropriate.
A180, Japan did not agree with parag~aph S, for the question of the peaceful
settlement of disputes was central to the item relating to the report of the
Special Committee on the Charter (item 137). His delegation's position on the
draft resolution should I)ot, however, be regarded as a derogation from its
commitment to the prin~lple of peaceful settlement of disputes.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.55
English
Page 8

30. Mr. AL-KHASAWNEH (Jordan) aaid that, while his delegat\on supported the draft
resolution, it had doubts about the legal validity of the r&quest made in
paragraph 4, since the Manila Declaration waa merely a r~commendation. Also, for
reasons connected with the rationalisation of the Organization's work, it had
doubts about the need to include the question of peacefUl settlement of disputes in
the agenda of the forty-third aession of the Gen.r~ Assembly.

31. Mr. BBRNHARD (Dftnmark), apeaking on behalf of the States members of the
European Community, said that the acceptance by those States of binding procedures
for the settlement of disputes was indioative of their basic a~proach to
international relations. Most of those States had, however, b~en unable to a~cept

the draft resolution because of the content ~f par~graphs 4 and 5. In their view,
the procedure envisaged in paragraph 4 would not resolve the underlying problem,
which was a lack of the political will to use established procedures for the
peacefUl settlftment of disputes. Instead they favoured the inclusion, in the
resolution on t~e report of the Special Committee on th6 Charter, of an appeal to
Governments to make use of the many procedures for the settlement of disputes
ptovided for in the Charter. The separate agenda item called ~or in paragraph 5 of
the draft resolution would then be superfluous.

32. Mr. KANDIE (Kenya) aaid that his delegation had voted in favour of the draft
resolution as a whole in recognition of the universalit.. and importance of the
principle of peaceful settlement of disputes. It wished, howe'~er, to enter a
reservation regarding the manner in which the subject was being hdndled in the
Sixth Committee. It would have preferred to see the Committee take a leading role
in t~e rationaliz~tion of the work and procedures of th3 United Nations.

33. Mr. NORDBACK (Sweden), speaking on behalf of the Nordic countries, said that
while they supported the principle of peaceful settlement of disputes, they were
not convinced of the advisability of establishing an extensive reporting procedure
on the implementation of the Manila Decla=ation, as provided for in paragraph 4 of
the draft resolution. In their view, what was needed was the political will to
make use of existing methods for the peacefUl settlement of disputes. They also
considered, with regard to paragraph 5, that it would be preferable, for purposes
of rationalization, to consider the question of peaceful settlement of disputes
under the item on the ra~rt of the S~cial Committee on the Charter. A separate
agenda item would then be superflUOUS. For those reasons, the Nordic delegftti~ns

had abstained in the vote on paragraph 4, had voted against paraqraph 5, and had
abstained in the vote on the draft resolution as a whole.

AG~NDA ITEM 138: JEVELOPMENT AND STRENGTHENING OF GOOD-NEI~HBOURLINESS BETWEEN
STATES (continued)

Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll

34. Mr. VOICU (Romania), introducing draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll on behalf of
the sponsors, said that Guyana should be added to the list. At the end of the
third preambular paragraph, the references co resolution 41/84 of 3 December 1986
and decision 40/419 of il December 1985 should be placed in cnronolO9ica1 order.

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.5~

English
Page 9

(Mr. Voicu, Rom.nia)

35. The Committee would note that the draft resolution was very similar to General
Assembly resolution 41/84, which had been adopted by consensus. In that
connection, he also drew attention to General Assembly resoluti~n 39/78, which had
been spon~ored by a number of delegations and had been adopted without a vote in
1984. Paragraph 4 of that resolution stat~d that the General Assembly deemed it
appropriate •••• to start clarifying and formulating the elements of
good-neighbourliness as part of a process of elabo~ation of a suitable
international docul,ent on the subject·. The sponsors trusted that draft resolution
A/C.6/42/L.ll would likewl~e be adopted without a vote.

36. Mr. EDWARDS (Untte~ Kingdom) said that his country had long practised
good-neighbourly relations with other States. However, it continued to doubt
wheth~r the concept of good-neighbourliness corresponded to any norm of
international law. It would have prefe~red the list of elements submitted in the
report of the Sub-Committee on Good-Neighbourliness to have been the culmination of
the endeavour to clarify the concept, so that consideration of the item could have
been b:~ught to a conclusion. It regretted that certain suggestions made by
delegations which had misgivings on the matter were not reflected in the draft
reaolu~ton. His delegatjon would therefore be unable to vote in favour of the
draft resolution, in particular because of t.he inclusion of paragraphs 5 and 6.

37. Mr. WULFFTEN PALTHE (Netherlands) said that his delegation was ~nable to
support t~e draft resclution, since it believed that the question of
good-neighbourliness, which had become completely politicized, should not be
included as a separate item on the agenda of the Sixth Committee. In particular,
it would vot~ against paragraph 5, since it saw no need for an internatic~al

instrument on yet another principle enshrined in the Charter. The only way to
achieve results seemed to be to adopt a more practical approach to the matter, in
the context of the Special Committee on the Charter. His delegation remained
convinced that the European Economic Community was an excellent illustration of
good-neighbourly relations in that connection.

38. Mr. SCHRICKE (France) recalled that his delegation had been a sponsor of
several resolutions on the subject of good-neighbourliness adopted by the General
Assembly at previous sessions. In doing so, however, it had never endorsed the
view that good-neighbourliness represented a specific concept in international
law. Although the work of the Sub-Committee over the vast three years gave rise to
serious doubts as to its continuing usefulness, his delegation would have been
prepared to endorse a simple decision to renew the Sub-Committee's mandata for
another year. Unfortunately, the chief sponsor of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll
had not only insisted on submitting a draft resolution rather than a draft decision
to the Sixth Committee, but had also introduced into the text the notion that the
elaboration of a ·suitable international document· on the subject should begin at
the next session, refusing to accept any suggested amendment. In the face of RO

intemperate an attitude, hi~ delegation would have no choice but to vote against
paragraph 5 3nd to abstain in the vote on the draft resolution as a whole.

/ ...



A!C.6/42/SR.55
Englhh
Page 10

39. Ms. STORZ-CHA~, (Federal Republic clf Germany) eaid that the maintenance of
good-neighbourly relatio~a had always been an integral part of her Government's
foreign policy. Being ~nable to apeak in favour of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll
therefore placed her d~legation in a 10000ewhat awkward polition. However. it
considered that ~iacl~ssions in the Sub-Committee over the p. ,t three years had
failed to define any ~angt.~le element of the concept of good-neighbourliness. A]'
the cOlllponents of the concept t'ln which agreement cOll1~ be reached were 1dequately
~overed in existing international instruments. Had the sponsors of the draft
resolution agreed to delete paragraph 5, her delegation would have been inclined to
join a possible consensus. Under the present circumstances, however, it could not
support tnf draft res~lution. It would therefore vote against paragreph 5 and
abstain i~ the vote on the draft as a whole.

40. A vote was taken by roll call on the last preambular paragraph of draft
r~solution A/C.6/42/L.ll.

In favourl Albania, Algerla, Angola, Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh,
Barbadoa, Benin, Shutan, Bolivia, Botswana, Bulg~ria, Burkina
Fano, Burma, Byelor""sian Sovi"t Socialist Republic, Cameroon,
Cape Verd., Central African Republic, Chad, Chile, China, C~ngo,

Costa Ri~a, Cote ~'Ivoire, CUba, Cyprus, Czechoslovakia,
Democratic Yemen, Ecuador, Egypt, Ethiopia, German Democratic
Republic, Ghana, Greece, Guatemala, Guinea, Guyana, Hungary,
India, Indonesia, Iran (Islam~c Republic of), Iraq, Kenya,
KuwaH:, Lao People's Democrath. RepubE,", Lesotho, Liberia,
Libyan Ar.ab Jamahiri/a, Madagascat, Malaysia, Maldives, Mali,
Mauritania, Mexico, Mongoli~, Morocco, Mozambi~ue, Nepal,
Nicaragua, Niger. -'::I'trh, oman, Pakistan, ranama, Paraguay,
Peru, Philippinea, Poland, Qatar, Romania, Rwand~, Saudi Arabia,
Senegal, Singapore, SomaliQ, Sudan, Surinamo, Swaziland, Syrian
Arab Republic, Thailand, Togo, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia,
Turkey, Uganda, Ukrainian Soviet Social~st Republic, Union of
Sovht Socblist Republic's, Unit.ecl Arab Emirates, United Republic
of Tanzania, Uruguay, Viet Nam, Yomen, Yugoslavia, Zaire, 2ambia,
Zimbabwe.

Againstl AI tralia, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, l'inland, France, Germany,
Federal RepUblic of, Iceland, J:reland, Italy, Japan, Netherlands,
New Zealand, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America.

Abstainingl Austria, Brazil, Israel, Jordan, Lebanon, Venezuela.

41. ~Ie last preambular paragraph of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll was adopted by
96 votes to 19, with 6 abstentions.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.55
English
Page 11

42. A vote was taken by roll call on operative paragraph 5 of draft resolution
A/C.6/42/L.ll.

In favour, Albania, Algeria, Angola, Argentina, Bahrain, Bangladesh,
Barbados, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Bots~ana, Bul~aria, Burkina
Faso, Burma. Qye10russian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cameroon,
Cape Verde, Central African Republic, Chad, Chile, China, Congo,
Costa Rica, Cote d'Ivoire, Cuba, Cyprus, Czechoslovakia,
Democratic Yemen, Ecuador, Egypt, Ethiopia, German Democratic
Republic, Ghana, Greece, Guatemilla, Guinea, Guyana, Hungary,
India, Indonesia, Iran (Islamic Republic of), Iraq, Kuwait, Lao
People's Democratic Republic, Lesotho, Liberia, Libyan Arab
J~mahiriya, Madagascar, Malaysia, Maldives, Mali, Mauritania,
Mexico, Mon~olia, Morocco, Mozambique, Nepal, Nicaragua, Niger,
Nigeria, oman, Pakistan, Panama, Pa!aguay, Peru, Philippines,
Poland, Qatar, ~ania, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia, Sen. gdl, Singapore,
Somalia, Sudan, Suriname, Swaziland, Syrian Arab Republic,
Thailand, Toga, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, Turkey, Uganda,
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics, U~ited Arab Emirates, United Republic of Tanzania,
Uruguay, Viet Nam, Yemen, Yugoslavia, zaire, Zambia, Zimbabwe.

~ainst' Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France,
Germany, Federal Republic of, Ic~land, Ireland, Italy, Japan,
Netlaellands, New Zealand, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of
America.

Abstaining, Brazil, Israel, Jordan, Lebanon, Venezuela.

43. Paragraph 5 of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll was adopted by 95 votes to 20,
with 5 abstentions.

44. A vote was taken by roll c~ll on draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.ll as a whole.

In favourr Albania, Algeria, Angola, Argcntina, Bahrain, Bangladesh,
Barbudos, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Botswana, Brazil, Bulgaria,
Burkina Faso, Burma, Byeloru8sian Soviet Socialist Republic,
Cameroon, Cape V~rde, Central African Republic, Chad, Chile,
China, Congo, Costa Rica, Cote d'Ivoire, Cuba, Cyprus,
C;·.··,~;lf)slovakia, Democrat!.c Yemen, Djibouti, Ecuador, Egypt,
Eth.t..!'J.a, German Democr:atic Republic, Ghana, Greece, Guatemala,
Guinea, Guyana, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Iran (181 .mic Republic
of), Iraq, Jordan, Kenya, Kuwait, Lao People's Democratic
Republic, Leb~non, Lesotho, Liberia, Libyan Arab Jamahiriya,
Madagascar, Malaysia, Maldives, Mali, Mauritania, Mexico,
Monqolia, Mo!occo, Mozambique, Nepal, Nic.. ragua, Niger, Nigeria,
oman, Pakistan, Panama, Paraguay~ Peru, Philippinea, Poland,
Qatar, Romania, Rwanda. Saudi Arabia, Senegal, Singapore,

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.5'i
Enqlish
Page 12

Somalia, Sl~~dn, Suriname, Swaailand, Syri.::"I Arab Republic,
Thailand, Togo, TLinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, Turkey, uganda,
Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Sooialist
Republics, United Arab Imirate., United Republic of Tanzania,
Uruguay, Venezuela, Viet Nam, Yemen, Yugoslavia, zaire, Zambia,
Zimbabwe.

Again~tl None.

Abstainingl Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, France,
Getmany, Pederal Republic of, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy,
Japan, Neth~rlands, New Ze.land, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden,
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United
States of America.

4'>. Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.Il as a whole was adoet&d by 101 votes to none,
with 21 abstentions.

46. Mr. TUERK (Austria), speaking in explanation of vote, said that, while
certainly considering the question of good-neighbourliness to be particularly
important in international relations, his delegation nevertheless had doubts a8 to
the rather ambitious programme for further work outlined in the draft resolution.
A decision to embark on such a programme taken without the support of all segments
of the international community would hardly advance the cause of the development
and strength4ninq ot good-neighbourline.s between States. The Organizatio~ls

budgetary constraints had also to be borne in mind. For those reasons, his
delegation had been regretfully obliged to abstain from voting on the draft
resolution.

47. Mr. TRF.VES (Italy) recalle~ that hie delegl:tion hed taken a sympathetic view
of the item from the outset, and had participated in the consensus on a number of
~eaolutiona, includi~g that of 1984, which _lready mentioned the elaboration of an
appropriate international instrument. However, developments in the Sub-Committee
had shown that the time was not yet ripe for drafting a new instrument. Many of
the more interesting and important aspects of the problem were already under
consideration elsewhere in the United Nations. Acoording Ly, his delegation had
voted against the last preambular parftgraph and paragraph 5, and had abst.ained in
the vote on the draft resolution aG a whole.

48. Mr. ROSENSTOCK (United States of America), after stressing hia country's
commitment to the concept and polioy of good relations with its neighbours, said
that discussion in the Sub-Committee and the Sixth Committee itself had failed to
reveal any legal content particular to the notion of good-neic;;hbourl l 'HUIS. HlA
delegation's inability to vote in lavour of the draft c••olution was not a
rejection ot' good-neighbourliness, but rather a response to the question whether
the elabora~ion ,~f a document on that subject should be undertaken. Endless
proli ferat,l nn of internatl.onal instruments tended to debase the vlllue of ad at! nq
ones, such as the Manila Declaration and the reclaration on Principl~n of
International La~ conc~rning Friendly Relations and Co-oper~tion among States tn



A/C.6/42/SR.S5
English
Page 13

(Mr. Rosenstock, united States)

accordance with the Charter of the United Nations. Instead of addressing the issce
of the utility of such an exercise, the draft resolution blithely proceeded to call
for the elaboration of a nftw instr.:ment. His delegation considered that a more
prudent course would have heen to sUltHtnd the work of the Sub-Committee so as to
enahle States to comment ~n its future. Prom a procedural point of view, a draft
decision would have be~n a more appropriate mechanism for dealing with the matter.

49. Mr. BLOKHUS (Norw~r)' s~~aking O~l behalf of the Nordic delegations, said that
those delegationa had abstained from voting on the draft resollltion as a whole,
because work already l.1nderlaken had shown that continued ettempts to Agree on the
elements of good-ne!g;lbourliness were unlikely to yield practical results. The
Nordic delegations did not think that the Sixth Committee should use its limited
r ••ources on restating principles already set forth in existing instruments. ?or
that reason, they had not participated in the Sub-Committee's work. While
supporting all con~tructlve efforts to enhance friendly relations between States,
they continued to have strong doubts as to the wisdom of pursuing the matter in the
Sixth Committee.

50. ~~~ (United Arab ~mirates) said that his de~egation had voted in
favour of th~ draft resolution because it w~s firmly committed to tho lof~y

principles reaffirmed therein. That commitment should not, however, be
misconstrued as readiness to normalize relations with aggressor regimes or to
submit to policies which led to the killing of innocent people under the pretext of
combating terrorism.

AGENDA ITEM 132z REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS COMMISSION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE
LAW ON THE WORK OF ITS TWENTIETH SESSION 'continued)

Draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.9

51. Mr. TUERK (Austria), tntroducing draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.9 on behalf ol
ita sponsors, said that they had been joined by Canada, Cyprus, Egypt, Greece,
Hungary, India, Japan, Sweden and Turkey. The teAt reflected UNCITRAL's
recommendations concerning the use of the Legal Guide on Drawing Up International
Contracts for the Constructio', of Industrial Works, and the accession of States to
conventions e~anating from its work. Thus, the preamble, in addition to echoing
General Assembly resolution 41/77, also expressed the opi~ion that the Legal Guide
would be helpful to all parties in concluding international contracts for the
construction ot industrial works, and the conviction that accession to conventions
enanating from the work of UNCITRAL would benefit the peoples of all States. The
Secretary-General was invited to conside: taking ~hatever measures might b~

necessary, within existing resources, to pr(,vide ~he Commission with adequate
sub6t~ntive secretariat supp~rt. ~s evidence of the need for such action, he
pointed out tha~ four out of 11 Professional posts i~ the International Trade Law
Branch would be vacant by 1 December 1988, and there were no immediate prospects of
any reEef.

/ ...



A/C. 6/4USR. 55
Bnglieh
Page 14

(Mt. Tuerk, Austria)

52. In conclusion, he recommended the draft resolution to the Committee for
adoption without a vote, in the belief that the consensus procedure followed by
UNCITRAL should also prevail in the Committee.

53. Draft reSOlution A/C.6/42/L.9~adopted.

54. Mr. BERNA!, (Mexico) said, with reference to paragraph 9 of the draft
resolution, that his Government had sent three of the four instruments to which
States were invited to accede to the Mexican Senate for approval, and hoped soon to
be in a position to ratify then.. His delegation was particularly pleased that the
Commission had completed and adoptftd its Legal Guide on Drawing up I~ternational

Contracts for the Construction of Industrial Works, which Mexico saw as anothftr
step towards consolidating the new international economic order.

Uraft resolution AlC.6/42/L.l',

55. Mr. TUERK (Austria), introducing draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.15 on behalf OL
its sponsors, said that they had been joined by Cyprus. In its decision to submit
its o~aft Convention on International Bills of Exchange and International
Promissory Notes to the General Assembly, UNCITRAL had drawn attention to the fact
that all States and interested international organizations had been invited to
participate in its preparation and to submit written comments on it. The draft
Convention had been adopted by UNCITRAL consensus and reprasented more than 14
years' work.

56. Although many thought that the draft Convention should be adopted at the
current session of the General Assembly and opened for si'1nature as soon ay
possible, others took the view that Governments needed more time ~:l consider it..
The preamble therefore expre8~ly recognized that Governments should he given
sufficient time to study the draft Convention. The sponsors, in a spirit of
compromise, were Bugge~tin9 that the Genera~ Assembly should decide to consider and
adopt the draft at its forty-third 8ession, and to open the Convention for
signatur~ on 1 January 1989. Delegations wishing to comment on aspects of the
draft Convention would thus be able to set out their views in detail. If their
suggestions met with the Committee'o general agreement, they could be suitably
taken into account.

57. The sponsors of draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.15 hoped that the flexible
procedure suggested woula meet with the Committee's approval and that the t~xt

could be adopted without a vote.

58. The CHAIRMAN said that, as agreed previously, the Committee would take a
decision on draft resolution A/C.6/42/L.15 at its next mefttinq.

The meeting rose at 6.40 p.m.


